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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIAMI DIVISION
CASE NO.:

Adam Weich,
other similarly-situated individuals,

Plaintiff(s),
VS.

Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and
Hamid Sarrafi.
Defendants.
/

COMPLAINT
(OPT-IN PURSUANT TO 29 U.S.C § 216(B))

The Plaintiff, Adam Weich, by and through the undersigned counsel, sues the
Defendants and allege:

1. This is an action to recover money damages for unpaid wages under the laws of the
United States. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29
U.S.C. § 201-219 (Section 216 for jurisdictional placement)(“the Act”).

2. Plaintiff, Adam Weich is a resident of Miami-Dade County, Florida, within the
jurisdiction of this Honorable Court. Plaintiff is a covered employee for purposes of the
Act.

3. Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi, is a Florida Profit
incorporation and a Florida resident, respectively, having their main place of business in
Miami-Dade County, Florida, where Plaintiff worked for Defendants, and at all times
material hereto were and are engaged in interstate commerce. The individual Defendants
reside in Miami-Dade County, Florida.

4. The Plaintiff, Adam Weich, is an assistant journeyman employee who performed various

duties which included, any and all works that were necessary of him in the construction
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site, including but not limited, to, assisting in putting dry wall, assisted in plumbing
matters, and assisted with general carpentry. The Plaintiff work for the Defendants
likewise affects interstate commerce. Defendants employed Plaintiff as an assistant
journeyman employee by Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi.

5. While employed by Defendants, the Defendants failed to pay the Plaintiff, Adam Weich
for seventeen pay periods and is owed 5.5 hours of overtime and not being compensated
for any hours over 40.

6. Plaintiff was paid an average of $23.00 an hour in starting on or about January 2018
through and continuing through April 30, 2018 but was not paid for any hours that he
worked in excess of 40 hours per week. Plaintiff seeks to recover for unpaid overtime
and wages accumulated from the date of hire and/or from 3 (three) years from the date of
the filing of this complaint.

7. Plaintiff was required to work in excess of 40 hours per week with no provisions for
overtime wages.

8. Prior to the completion of discovery and to the best of Plaintiff, Adam Weich,
knowledge, at the time of the filing of this complaint, Plaintiff, good faith estimate of
unpaid wages are as follows:

Actual Damages plus interest, representing the amount of unpaid wages on a bi-weekly
basis as follows:

* Pay period one (pay period ending January 5, 2018): Plaintiff worked 24
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$552.00.

* Pay period two (pay period ending January 12, 2018): Plaintiff worked 39
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of

$897.00.
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Pay period three (pay period ending January 19, 2018): Plaintiff worked
15 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$345.00.

Pay period four (pay period ending January 26, 2018): Plaintiff worked 40
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$920.00.

Pay period five (pay period ending February 2, 2018): Plaintiff worked 40
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$920.00.

Pay period six (pay period ending February 9, 2018): Plaintiff worked 23
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$529.00.

Pay period seven (pay period ending February 16, 2018): Plaintiff worked
40 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$920.00.

Pay period eight (pay period ending February 23, 2018): Plaintiff worked
31 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$713.00.

Pay period nine (pay period ending March 2, 2018): Plaintiff worked 31.5
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$725.50.

Pay period ten (pay period ending March 9, 2018): Plaintiff worked 40.5
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$931.50. plus an additional $11.50 for the .5 hours worked in the amount

$5.75 for a grand total of $937.25.
3
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Pay period eleven (pay period ending March 16, 2018): Plaintiff worked
42 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$966.00 plus an additional $11.50 for the 2 hours worked in the amount
$23.00 for a grand total of $989.00.

Pay period twelve (pay period ending March 23, 2018): Plaintiff worked
37 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$851.00.

Pay period thirteen (pay period ending March 30, 2018): Plaintiff worked
43 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$989.00 plus an additional $11.50 for the 3 hours worked in the amount
$34.50 for a grand total of $1,023.50.

Pay period fourteen (pay period ending April 6, 2018): Plaintiff worked 36
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$828.00.

Pay period fifteen (pay period ending April 13, 2018): Plaintiff worked 40
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$920.00.

Pay period sixteen (pay period ending April 20, 2018): Plaintiff worked 40
hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of
$920.00.

Pay period seventeen (pay period ending April 26, 2018): Plaintiff worked
32 hours ($23.00 per hour) of unpaid wages for a total amount due of

$736.00 of which $500 was paid for a total of 236.00.

THEREFORE, the Plaintiff is owed a total of $13,650.75 in unpaid wages.



Case 1:18-cv-21894-FAM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 05/11/2018 Page 5 of 10

10.

11.

12.

13.

Liquidated Damages representing an equal amount in double damages/liquidated
damages of: $13,650.75.

TOTAL DAMAGES: $27,301.50 plus reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of suit.

COUNT I: FAILURE TO PAY
VIOLATION BY STONE CONCEPT MIAML, INC, AND HAMID SARRAFI

Plaintiffs re-adopts each and every factual allegation as stated in paragraphs 1 through 6
above as if set out in full herein.

At all times material hereto, the Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid
Sarrafi, failed to comply with Title 29 U.S.C. §§201-219 and 29 C.F.R. and § 516.2 and
§516.4 et seq. in that the Plaintiff, Adam Weich performed services and no provision was
made by the Defendants to properly pay them as required by the act. The additional
persons who may become Plaintiffs in this action were weekly paid employees and/or
former employees of the Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi, who
are and who were subject to the unlawful payroll practices and procedures of the
Defendants.

The Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi, knew and/or showed
reckless disregard for the provisions of the Act concerning the payment of wages
required by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and remain owing the Plaintiffs, Adam
Weichunpaid wages as set forth above.

The Plaintiffs, Adam Weich are entitled to recover double damages. Defendants, Stone
Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi never posted any notice, as required by the Fair
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and Federal Law, to inform employees of their federal
rights to minimum wage payments.

The Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi willfully and intentionally

refused to pay the Plaintiffs, Adam Weich wages as required by the law of the United
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States as set forth above and remains owing Plaintiff these unpaid wages since November
2014.

14. The Plaintiffs, Adam Weich have retained the law offices of the undersigned attorney to
represent them in this action and are obligated to pay reasonable attorney’s fee.

15. The Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi, have violated the
FLSA’s prompt payment requirement by failing to pay Plaintiffs, Adam Weich promptly.

16. The Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi violation of FLSA
provisions concerning prompt, regular payment of wages were willful.

17. The Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi knew and/or showed
reckless disregard for the provisions of the FLSA and its regulations concerning prompt,
regular payment of wages.

18. The Plaintiffs, Adam Weich are entitled to recover liquidated damages in an amount
equal the actual damages for Defendant’s FLSA violation.

COUNT II: WAGE AND HOUR FEDERAL STATUTORY VIOLATION AGAINST,
STONE CONCEPT MIAMIL, INC, AND HAMID SARRAFI

19. Plaintiff re-adopts each and every factual allegation as stated in paragraphs 1-6 above as
if set out in full herein.

20. This action is brought by Plaintiff and those similarly-situated to recover from the
Employer unpaid overtime compensation, as well as an additional amount as liquidated
damages, costs, and reasonable attorney’s fees under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 201 et
seq., and specifically under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 207. 29 U.S.C. § 207 (a)(1)
states, “ No employer shall employ any of his employees... for a work week longer than
40 hours unless such employee receives compensation for his employment in excess of
the hours above-specified at a rate not less than one and a half times the regular rate at

which he is employed.”
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21. Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court by Title 28 U.S.C. § 1337 and by Title 29 U.S.C. §
216(b). The Employer is and, at all times pertinent to this Complaint, was engaged in
interstate commerce. At all times pertinent to this Complaint, the Employer/Defendants
operates as an organization which sells and/or markets its services and/or goods to
customers from throughout the United States and also provides its services for goods sold
and transported from across state lines of other states, and the Employer/Defendants
obtains and solicits funds from non-Florida sources, accepts funds from non-Florida
sources, uses telephonic transmissions going over state lines to do its business, transmits
funds outside the State of Florida, and otherwise regularly engages in interstate
commerce, particularly with respect to its employees. Upon information and belief, the
annual gross revenue of the Employer/Defendants was at all times material hereto in
excess of $500,000 per annum, and/or Plaintiff and those similarly-situated, by virtue of
working in interstate commerce, otherwise satisfy the Act’s requirements.

22. By reason of the foregoing, the Employer/Defendants is and was, during all times
hereafter mentioned, an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for
commerce as defined in §§ 3 (r) and 3(s) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. § 203(r) and 203(s) and/or
Plaintiff and those similarly-situated was and/or is engaged in interstate commerce for
Defendants. Defendants , Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi business
activities involve those to which the Fair Labor Standards Act applies. The Defendant
provides general handy-man work, and through its business activity, affects interstate
commerce. The Plaintiff’s work for the Defendants likewise affects interstate commerce.
Plaintiff was employed by Defendants as an assistant journeyman employee who
performed various duties which included, any and all works that were necessary of him in

the construction site, including but not limited, to, assisting in putting dry wall, assisted in
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plumbing matters, and assisted with general carpentry. wherever assigned by Stone
Concept Miami, Inc.

23. At all times material hereto, the Employer/Defendants failed to comply with Title 29
U.S.C. §§ 201-219 and 29 C.F.R. § 516.2 and § 516.4 et seq. in that Plaintiff and those
similarly-situated performed services and worked in excess of the maximum hours
provided by the Act but no provision was made by the Defendants to properly pay them
at the rate of time and one half for all hours worked in excess of forty hours (40) per
workweek as provided in said Act. The additional persons who may become Plaintiffs in
this action are bi-weekly-paid employees and/or former employees of Defendants who
are and who were subject to the unlawful payroll practices and procedures of Defendants
and were not paid time and one half of their regular rate of pay for all overtime hours and
straight time hours worked in excess of forty.

24. Defendants knew and/or showed reckless disregard of the provisions of the Act
concerning the payment of overtime wages as required by the Fair Labor Standards Act
and remains owing Plaintiff and those similarly-situated these overtime wages since the
commencement of Plaintiff’s and those similarly-situated employee’s employment with
Defendants as set forth above, and Plaintiff and those similarly-situated are entitled to
recover double damages. Defendants never posted any notice, as required by the Fair
Labor Standards Act and Federal Law, to inform employees of their federal rights to
overtime and minimum wage payments.

25. At the times mentioned, Defendant Hamid Sarrafi was, and is now, the President and/or
owner of Defendant Corporations. Defendant, Hamid Sarrafi, was the employer of
Plaintiff and others similarly situated within the meaning of Section 3(d) of the “Fair
Labor Standards Act” [29 U.S.C. § 203(d)], in that this individual Defendant acted

directly in the interests of Defendant employer in relation to the employees of Defendant

8
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employer, including Plaintiff and others similarly situated. Defendant, Hamid Sarrafi,
had operational control of the business, provided Plaintiff with his work schedule, and is
jointly liable for Plaintiff’s damages.

26. Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi willfully and intentionally
refused to pay Plaintiff overtime wages as required by the law of the United States as set
forth above and remains owing Plaintiff these overtime wages since the commencement
of Plaintiff’s employment with Defendants as set forth above.

27. Plaintiff has retained the law offices of the undersigned attorney to represent him in this
action and is obligated to pay a reasonable attorneys’ fee.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and those similarly-situated request that this Honorable Court:
A. Enter judgment for Plaintiffs and other similarly-situated individuals and against the
Defendants, Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and Hamid Sarrafi on the basis of Defendants’
willful violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. and other Federal
Regulations; and
B. Award Plaintiffs actual damages in the amount shown to be due for unpaid wages and
overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of forty weekly, with interest; and
C. Award Plaintiffs an equal amount in double damages/liquidated damages; and
D. Award Plaintiffs reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of suit; and
E. Grant such other and further relief as this Court deems equitable and just and/or available
pursuant to Federal Law.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and those similarly-situated individuals demand trial by jury of all issues triable
as of right by jury.

Respectfully submitted,
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JARA & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
10271 Sunset Drive, Suite 103
Miami, Florida 33173
Telephone: (305) 372-0290
Facsimile: (305) 675-0383
E-filing: info@jaralaw.com

By: /s/ Franklin A. Jara
Franklin Antonio Jara, Esq.
Fla. Bar No. 636681

10
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Adam Weich,
other similarly-situated individuals

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and
Hamid Sarrafi.

e N e e N W e

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Stone Concept Miami, Inc.
1239 Robin Ave
Miami Springs, FL 33166

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

JARA & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
10271 Sunset Drive, Suite 103
Miami, Florida 33173
Telephone: (305) 372-0290

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (mame of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(3 I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

—Fi [ sevens |
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Adam Weich,
other similarly-situated individuals

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

Stone Concept Miami, Inc, and
Hamid Sarrafi.

e N e e N W e

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Hamid Sarrafi
1239 Robin Ave
Miami Springs, FL 33166

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

JARA & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
10271 Sunset Drive, Suite 103
Miami, Florida 33173
Telephone: (305) 372-0290

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (mame of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(3 I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

—Fi [ sevens |



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Lawsuit Against Stone Concept Miami Claims Employee Wasn't Paid Any Wages



https://www.classaction.org/news/lawsuit-against-stone-concept-miami-claims-employee-wasnt-paid-any-wages



